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ﬂ‘ERICKSEN KRENTEL.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners
Lakefront Management Authority

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business
type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Lakefront
Management Authority (the Authority), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

4227 Canal Street Ericksen Krentel LLP 2895 Highway 190, Ste 213
New Orleans, LA 70119 www.EricksenKrentel.com Mandeville, LA 70471
P: (504) 486-7275 | F:(504) 482-2516 P: (985) 727-0777 | F:(985) 727-6701



ﬂ 1 ERICKSEN KRENTEL.

To the Board of Commissioners
Lakefront Management Authority
November 3, 2020

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Lakefront Management Authority as of
June 30, 2020 and the respective changes in the financial position and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 10, schedule of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balance — governmental funds budget and actual on page 44, and schedules of
proportionate share of net pension liability, contributions — retirement plan, and proportionate share
of the collective net OPEB liability on pages 45 through 47 and the related notes to required
supplemental information on pages 48 and 49 (together “required supplementary information™) are
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The schedule of compensation,
benefits and other payments to agency head is presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards
is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.



ERICKSEN KRENTEL.

To the Board of Commissioners
Lakefront Management Authority
November 3, 2020

The schedule of compensation, benefits, and other payments to agency head and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the schedule of compensation, benefits and other payments to agency head and the schedule
of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November
3, 2020, on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

November 3, 2020
New Orleans, Louisiana

Gotohser, Sl lf ¢ef

Certified Public Accountants
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2020

The Management’'s Discussion and Analysis of the Lakefront Management Authority, formerly
known as the Non-I'lood Protection Asset Management Authority, (the Authority) presents a
narrative overview and analysis of the Authority’s financial results for the year ended Junc 30,
2020. This document focuses on the current year’s activities, resulting changes, and currently
known facts relating to the Authority and the following five orgamzations:

* South Shore Harbor Marina

¢ Lakefront Airport

» Orleans Marina

+ Lake Vista Community Center

¢ New Basin Canal

These five organizations are accounted for as proprietary funds of the Authority. While the
Orleans Levee District owns the assets of these proprietary funds, the Southeast Louisiana Flood
Protection Authority — East (SLFPALE), which controls the Orleans Levee District, is prohibited
from managing or operating them. Accordingly, they are managed and controlled by the
Authority. The powers and duties of the Authority are designated in LA R.S. 38:330.12 and LA
R.S.38:330.12.1.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are mtended o serve as an miroduction to the Authonity's basic
financial statements. The Authonity's basic financial statements are comprised of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes
to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition
to the basic financial statements themselves.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The "government-wide financial statements” are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the Authority's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The
"statement of net position” presents information on all of the Authority's assets and liabilitics,
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is
mmproving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position
changed during the most recent fiscal vear. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
‘Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows i future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish function of the Authority that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other {unctions that are mtended to recover all or a signilicant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activities). The Authority has both governmental activities and
business-type activities.



LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT™S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

The governmental activities mclude most of the Authority’s basic services such as infrastructure
and public works, and general government. Property taxes and operating grants finance most of
this activity. The vast majority of governmental activities are related to upkeep of roadways and
public reereation arcas along Lake Pontchartrain and related activitics.

The business-tvpe activities reflect operations that are financed and operated m a manner similar
to private businesses where the entity charges a fee for services it provides. The Orleans Levee
District’s marinas, airport, and business park which are managed by the Authority are included
here.

‘The State of Louisiana (the primary government) issues financial statements that include the
activity contained in these financial statements. The State's financial statements are 1ssued by the
Louisiana Division of Administration - Office of Statewide Reporting and Accounting Policy
and are audited by the Towsiana Tegislative Auditor. The Authority 1s a component unit of the
Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection Authority East, which is a component unit of the State of
Louisiana.

FUND FINANCTIAL STATEMENTS

A "fund" 1s a grouping of related accounts that 18 used to mamtain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Authority, like other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

The Authority's funds are classified as “governmental funds” and “proprietary funds”.
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. [However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the [(iscal year. Such mlormation may be useful in evaluating a
government's near-term financing requirements.

The proprictary funds for which the Lakefront Management Authority charges customers a fee
are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, like government-wide statements,
provide both long and short-tern financial information.

The Authority mamtains two governmental funds that are separated for management purposes.
Information 1s presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the
governmental statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the
following funds: the Orleans Levee District Real Estate Fund and General Improvement Fund.
Both of these funds are considered to be "major” funds.

The Authority’s Board adopts annual budgets for both of the governmental and improvement
funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided [or each fund to demonstrate
compliance with this budget



LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT™S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

PROPRIETARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present information for the operations of the Authority 1n a format
designed to make the statements easier for the reader to understand. The statements in this
section include the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net
Position, and the Statement of Cash Flows.

The Statement of Net Position presents the current and long-term portions of assets and lhabilities
separately, as well as deferred inflows and deferred outflows. The difference between assets,
deferred outtlows, liabilities, and deferred inflows is net position and may provide a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities and Changes m Net Position presents information showing how the
Authority’s net position changed as a result of current year operations. Regardless of when cash
1s aflected, all changes i net position are reported when the underlving transactions occur. As a
result, there are transactions included that will not atfect cash until future fiscal periods.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents information showing how the Proprictary Funds® cash
changed as a result of current vear operations. The cash flow statement 1s prepared using the
direct method and mcludes the reconcihiation of operating mcome (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities (indirect method) as required by GASB Codification 2200.

o



LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT™S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Condensed Statement of Net Position

The following table describes the net position of the Authority at the end of the current and prior

[iscal years:

Table 1
Net Position

(In Thousands)

Governmental Business-Typo Total
Activities Activities Activities
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Current and other assets $ 2,321 8 1,308 8 9,054 $ 8,521 §% 11,575 % 9,829
Capital assets 84 100 79 103 163 203
Total assets 2,605 1,408 9,133 8,624 11,738 10,032
Total deferred outflows
of resources 132 149 1178 1,260 1,209 1,404
Current Liabilities 2,596 1,898 1,364 776 3.960 2,674
Long-term liabilities 697 698 5,169 5,677 5,865 6,275
Total liabilities 3,293 2.596 6,532 6,454 9.823 9.050
Total deferred inflows
of resources 42 14 484 175 526 189
Net investment in capital
assets 31 100 79 103 163 203
Unrestricted (683) (1,153) 3.215 3.153 2532 2,000

e 'The Authority’s total net position at the close of fiscal year 2020 was $2.6 million which was
an increase of approximately $400,000 from the $2.2 million reported at the close of fiscal
year 2019, The increase is primarily due to the Authority increasing its cash and reserves,
while benefiting from decreased net pension hability and post-emplovment benefit liability.

-3



LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT™S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

Condensed Statement of Activities

The following table describes the changes in net position of the Authority during the current and
prior fiscal years:

Table 2
Changes in Net Position
(In Thousands)
Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Activities
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Program revenues 8 5 8 984 % 13,541 $ 6238 $ 13.545  § 7,222
Propertly management expenses (1,590} (2,923) (5,665) (9,291 (7,255) (12,214)

Program gajn (loss) (1,586) (1,939 7,876 {3.053) 6.290 (4,992
General revenues and

(rans fers 2,040 (45,675) (7,838) (89,661} (5,798) (135,336)
Chenges in net position $ 454 8 {47,614y § 38 8 (92.714) $ 492 % (140,328)

e Net program gain increased by approximately $11 million in the 2020 fiscal vear. This is
primarily due to grant revenues of nearly $8 million in 2020, which were mostly for
Lakefront Airport improvements. These improvements were transferred as of June 30,
2020 to the Orleans Levee District.

» Large transfers of assets to SLI'PAL, in accordance with a CEA signed during 2019, led
to a large loss in net position in 2019,

Table 3
Capital Assets at Year-end
{Net of Depreciation, In Thousands)

Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Activities
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Equipment s 84 8 100 & 79 % 103§ 163§ 203
Total capital assets. net $ 84 8 00 $ 79 % 103§ 163 % 203

The decreases in [ixed assets were due Lo depreciation adjustments. Improvements made to
properties under the Authority’s control totaling $8 million were transferred to the Orleans Levee
District.



LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT™S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following table lists long-term obligations of the Authority:

Table 4
Long-Term Liabilitics, at Year-end
(In Thousands)
Govemmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Activities
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Compensated abgenses $ 237 8§ 151 8 71 8 74 8 300 8§ 225
OPEB Hhability 81 132 931 1,330 1,012 1,461
Net pension liability 378 416 4,166 4,273 4,544 4,689
Total long-term labilities 3 697 & [N 5169 % 5677 % 5865 % 6,375

VARIATIONS BETWEEN EXPECTED AND ACTUATL AMOUNTS

The Authority’s officials considered many factors when setting the original fiscal year 2020
budget such as anticipated revenues versus salary and benefit expenditures with additional staff,
monthly services such as utilitics, and expenditures required to maintain the assets (i.c. Trash
Pick Up, Grass Cutting, etc.) Capital improvement projects were budgeted based on the
remainder of revenues afier those expenditures and the availability of grant revenues.

The revenue variance of $132 thousand between the actual amounts received versus the original
budgeted amount 1s due 1o lower tax revenues than anticipated as the millage was decreased in
2020. Variances from the original budgeted expenditures to actual expenditures were a variance
of $927 thousand (expenses were under budget) primarily due to lower contractual services
expenditures than anticipated.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets, Rates, and Fees

The Authority’s appointed oflicials considered the following factors and indicators when selting
next yvear’s budget, rates, and fees:

¢ Changes in organization processes

e Necessary major maintenance and project expendilures

e Additional boat slip capacity in the New Orleans area

« Changes resulting from COVID-19 and related safety protocols



LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT™S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

Contacting the Authority’s Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, mvestors and
creditors with a general overview of the Authority’s finances and to show the Authority’s
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need
additional [inancial information, contact the Authority at New Orleans Lakefront Airport,
Terminal Building, Suite 219, 6001 Stars & Stripes Blvd., New Orleans. Louisiana 70126.

10
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalenls
Investments - LAMP
Recetvables, net

Internal balances

Due from SLIFPALE

Due from other governmants
Other assels

Tolal current assels

MON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Capital assets, net of depreciation

Total noncurrent assels

Tolal assels

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

QOPER deferrals
Pension deferrals

Total deferred outflows of resources

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable

Advance fees and rents

Due to SLFPAE

Due to other agencies
Accrued payroll liabilities
Other Liabilities

Total cwrent liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Non-current liabilities due within one year:
Accrued compensated absences

Non-current liabilities due in more than one year:

Accrued cornpensated absences
Post-employment benefil iability
Net pension liability

Total noncurrent liabilities
Tolal iabilities

DEFEREED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Pension deferrals
QPER deferrals

Total deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ 648,777 8 - % 648,777
8,141,138 - 8,141,138
4,391 607,894 612,285
(7,175,944} 7.175.944 -
369,719 - 369,719
228,183 1,262,503 1,490,686
3,981 7.704 11,685
2,520,545 9,054,045 11,574,590
84,289 79.016 163,305
84,289 79.016 163,305
2,604,834 9,133.061 11,737,895
49,875 276,312 326,187
81.806 901,260 983.066
131,681 1,177.572 1,309,253
792,955 367,498 1,160,453
- 559,991 559,991
1,598,670 - 1,598,670
31,950 55,277 87,227
172,638 17,199 189,837
- 363,656 363,656
2,596,213 1,363.621 3,959,834
17,583 12,070 29,653
219,910 59,055 278,965
80,999 931.488 1,012,487
378.161 4,166.216 4,544 377
696,653 5,168,829 5,865,482
3,292 866 6,532,450 9,825,316
, 799 19,822 21,621
40,378 464,342 504,720
42,177 484,164 526,341
84,289 79,016 163,305
(682.817) 3,215,003 2,532,186
p (598,528) $ 3,294,019 § 2,695,491

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of these combined financial statements.

it



LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Postion

Capital
Charges for CGrants and Governmental Business-Type
Functions/ Programs Ixpenses Services Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental Activities:
Property managernent § 1,590,498 § - § 4509 § (1,585,989 § - % {1,585,989)
Total govermental activities 1,590,498 - 4,509 (1,585,989} - {1,585,989)
Business-Type Activities
South Shore Harbor Marina 1,387,079 959,900 - - (427,179 (427,179)
Lakefront Airport 3,333,768 1,970,728 7,935,447 - 6,572,407 6,572,407
Orleans Marina 624,091 1,323,470 - - 649,379 699,379
New Basin Canal 175,827 1,084,257 13,234 - 921,664 921,664
Lake Vista Cominonty Center 144,050 253,830 - - 139,789 109,789
Total business-type activities 5,604,815 5,502,194 7,948,681 - 7,876,060 7,876,060
Total funclions/programs $ 7255313 § 5,502,194 § 7,953,190 {1,585,989; 7,876,060 6,290,071
General revenues, special items and trans{ers:

Taxes 1,853,018 - 1,853,018

Investment earnings 129,100 - 129,100

Miscellaneous income 75,914 159,028 234942

Transfers (toyfrom SLFPAE (17,7413 (7,997,205 {R8,014,946)
Total general revenues, special itemns and transfers 2,040,201 (7,838,177} (5,797,886

Change in net pesition 454,302 37,883 492,185

Net position - beginning of year (1,052,830} 3,256,136 2,203,306

Net position - end of year $ {598,528) § 3,294,019 § 2,695,491

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these combined financial staterments.
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
AS OF JTUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS
(General Total
OLD Real  Improvement  Governmental
Fstate Fund Fund Funds
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents S 648,777 3% - § 648,777
Investments - LAMP 8,441,438 - 8,441,438
Receivables 4,391 - 4,391
Due from other funds 15,505,139 203227 15.808.366
Due from other governments 39,073 189,110 228,183
Other assets 3.981 - 3,981
Total assets § 24642709 § 492,337 S 25,135,130

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOQURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable $ 794,121 % - % 794,121
Other accrued 210,233 - 210,233
Due to other funds 21,706,863 2,506,398 24,213,261
Due to other agencies 341 30,743 31.084
Total habilities 22.711.558 2.537.141 25.248 699
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES {300 - (300
FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable:
Prepaid and other assets 3,981 - 3,981
Unassigned 1,927,560 (2,044,804) (117,244)
Total fund balances (deficit) 1,931,541 (2.044.804) (113,263)

Total Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances $ 24642799 § 492337 § 25135136

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these combined financial statements.
13



LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTHE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF TUNE 30 2020

Fund balances - total governmental funds b {113,263)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Position are different because:
Capital assets in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds, net of
accumulated deprectation of $1,494,146 84,289
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and OPER are not
reported in the governmental funds:
Pensions 81,806
OPEB 49,875
Deferred mflows of resources related to pensions and OPEDR are not
reported in the governmental funds:
Pensions (1,799
OPEB (40,378)
Liabilities that are not due and payable within 60 davs of year-end
and, therefore, and not reported in the funds
Accrued compensated absences (199,898)
Post-employment benefit liability {80,999)
Net pension liability (378.161)

Net position of governmental activities &

(598.528)

The accompanying notss are an integral part of these combined financial statements.
14



LAKEIRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

REVENUES:
Taxes

Operating grants
Other

Interest carnings

Total revenucs

EXPENDITURES:
Personnel services
Travel and training
Contractual services
Material and supplies
Professional services

Capital outlay

Other charges

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over expenditures

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances (deficit) - beginning of year

Fund balances (deficit) - end of year

General Total
OLD Real Tmprovement Governmental
Estate Fund lund Lrunds
$ 1,853,018 § - % 1,853,018
- 4,509 4,509
75,911 - 75,911
129,100 - 129,100
2,058,029 4,509 2,062,538
210,535 - 210,535
2,576 - 2,576
758,103 - 758,103
178,027 - 178,027
382,052 - 382,052
17,741 - 17,741
9,429 - 9,429
1,558,463 - 1,558,463
499,566 4,509 504,075
499,566 4,509 504,075
1,431,973 (2,049,313} (617,338)
$ 1,931,541 § (2,044,804 § {113,263)

The accompanying notss are an integral part of these combined financial statements.
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 504,075

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities and
Changes in Net Position are different because governmental funds report capital outlay as
expenditures while governmental activities report depreciation expense to allocate those
expenditures over the life of the assets:
Depreciation expense (15,586)

Some items reported in the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position
do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds

Compensated absences (76,411}

Post-employment benefit obligation 14,407

Pension expense 27.817
Change in net position 3 454302

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these combined financial statements.
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CURRENT ASSETS:
Receivables, net of allowance for
uncollectables accounts
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Other assets

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Other capital assets, net of depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTLFOWS OF RESOURCES:
Pension deferrals
OPEB deferrals

Total deferred outflows of resources

Total assets and deferred outflow of resources

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Due to other governments

Advance fees and rents
Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Noncurrent liabilities due within one year:
Accrued compensated absences

Noncurrent liabilities due in more than one year:

Accrued compensated absences
Post-employment benefit liability
Net pension liability

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
OPEB deferrals

Pension deferrals

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Major Funds Non-Major
Total
South Shore Proprietary
Harbor Marina Lakefront Airport Orleans Marina New Basin Canal Lake Vista Funds
178,661 $ 215,092 § 132,534 § 69,471 § 12,136 § 607,894
1,835,858 - 7,229,328 10,853,030 483,786 20,402,002
- 1,259,671 - 2,832 - 1,262,503
104 6,655 945 - - 7,704
2,014,623 1,481,418 7,362,807 10,925,333 495,922 22,280,103
8.507 70.509 - - - 79.016
8,507 70,509 - - - 79.016
2,023,130 1,551,927 7,362,807 10,925,333 495,922 22,359,119
123,792 560,321 138,862 52,190 26,095 901,260
35.293 187.619 36.699 10,438 6.263 276,312
159,085 747,940 175,561 62,628 32,358 1,177,572
2,182,215 2,299,867 7,538,368 10,987,961 528,280 23,536,691
- 347,011 20,487 - - 367,498
293,809 12,932,249 - - - 13,226,058
25,535 11,840 17,902 - - 55,277
345,092 214,899 - - - 559,991
31,443 230,610 46,319 69,038 3,445 380,855
695,879 13,736,609 84,708 69,038 3,445 14,589,679
902 10,374 794 - - 12,070
5,112 49,446 4,497 - - 59,055
131,624 577,118 141,748 50,624 30,374 931,488
572,246 2,590,170 641,915 241,257 120,628 4,166,216
709,884 3,227,108 788,954 291,881 151,002 5,168,829
1,405,763 16,963,717 873,662 360,919 154,447 19,758,508
65,613 287,690 70,661 25,236 15,142 464,342
2,722 12,323 3,055 1,148 574 19,822
68,335 300,013 73,716 26,384 15,716 484,164
8,507 70,509 - - - 79,016
699,610 (15,034,372) 6,590,990 10,600,658 358,117 3,215,003
708,117 § (14,963,863) $ 6,590,990 $ 10,600,658 $ 358,117 § 3,294,019

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these combined financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services
Rentals
Fuel storage fees

Total charges for services

Miscellaneous income

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel services
Travel
Contractual services
Materials and supplies
Professional services
Other charges
Depreciation
Major maintenance

Total operating expenses

Net operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Grant income
Transfers to SLFPAE

Total nonoperating revenues

Change in net position

Total net position - beginning of year

Total net position - end of year

LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

FOR THE YEAR END JUNE 30, 2020

Major Funds Non-Major
Total
South Shore Proprietary
Harbor Marina Lakefront Airport Orleans Marina New Basin Canal Lake Vista Funds
959,900 $ 1,613,151 § 1,323,470 $ 1,084,257  $ 253,839 § 5,234,617
- 357,571 - - - 357,577
959,900 1,970,728 1,323,470 1,084,257 253,839 5,592,194
76 144,063 14,253 36 600 159,028
959,976 2,114,791 1,337,723 1,084,293 254,439 5,751,222
301,412 1,407,555 390,324 76,557 86,020 2,261,868
21 356 - - - 377
385,489 1,033,471 139,235 14,634 50,192 1,623,021
35,767 80,194 24,878 - 4,883 145,722
639,381 432,374 42,372 84,636 2,805 1,201,568
20,229 7,847 22,738 - 150 50,964
2,127 17,021 4,544 - - 23,692
2,653 354,950 - - - 357,603
1,387,079 3,333,768 624,091 175,827 144,050 5,604,815
(427,103) (1,218,977) 713,632 908,466 110,389 86,407
- 7,935,447 - 13,234 - 7,948,681
- (7,541,762) (455,443) - - (7,997,205)
- 393,685 (455,443) 13,234 - (48,524)
(427,103) (825,292) 258,189 921,700 110,389 37,883
1,135,220 (14,138,571) 6,332,801 9,678,958 247,728 3,256,136
708,117 § (14,963,863) $ 6,590,990 $ 10,600,658 § 358,117 § 3,294,019
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers
Other operating cash receipts
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash from (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN) CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from federal and state grants

Purchase of capital assets

Net cash from (used in) capital and related financing activities

Net change in cash

Cash — beginning of year

Cash — end of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO CASH FROM (USED

IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash used in operating activities:
Cash flows reported in other categories
Depreciation expense
Cash from (used in) other areas
Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts and other payables
Due to other funds
Post-employment benefit liability
Net pension liability
Other liabilities
Change in deferred outflows of resources
Change in deferred inflows of resources

Net cash from (used in) operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these combined financial statements.

Major Funds Non-Major
Total
South Shore Proprietary
Harbor Marina Lakefront Airport Orleans Marina New Basin Canal Lake Vista Funds
$ 850,430 $ 1,844,012 § 1,229,253  § 1,016,444 $ 241,778 $ 5,181,917
76 144,063 14,253 36 600 159,028
(546,321) (202,807) (446,142) (926,187) (172,619) (2,294,076)
(304,185) (1,333,006) (341,921) (103,527) (69,759) (2,152,398)
- 452,262 455,443 (13,234) - 894,471
- 7,089,500 - 13,234 - 7,102,734
- (7,541,762) (455,443) - - (7,997,205)
- (452,262) (455,443) 13,234 - (894,471)
$ - 8 - 3 - 3 - 8 -3 -
$ (427,103) $ (825,292) $ 258,189 $ 921,700 $ 110,389 $ 37,383
2,127 17,021 4,544 - - 23,692
- 452,262 455,443 (13,234) - 894,471
(109,470) (967,590) (94,217) (67,813) (12,061) (1,251,151)
5,033,866 5,392,802 208,170 (786,549) 24,981 9,873,270
(40) (131) (85) - - (256)
- 344,851 20,487 - 40 365,378
(4,496,607) (4,031,137) (445,491) (40,368) (139,610) (9,153,213)
(58,333) (241,156) (48,208) (37,048) (13,462) (398,207)
(38,006) (50,761) 19,144 (59,227) 21,900 (106,950)
23,438 145,113 20,331 34,169 (992) 222,059
26,725 28,878 8,494 (14,418) (10,681) 38,998
43,403 187,402 48,642 49,554 19,496 348,497
$ - 8 452,262 $ 455,443 § (13,234) § - § 894,471
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30. 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The Lakefront Management Authority, formerly known as the Non-Flood Protection Asset
Management Authority, (Authority) was created by LA R.S. 38:330.12, which placed the non-flood
related assets and activities of the Orleans Levee District (OLD) under the management and control the
Authority. The statute also states that those asscts will continue to be owned by OLD. The creation,
powers, duties and functions of the Authority are specified in LA R.5. 38:330.12.1.

‘The Authority is governed by a Board of Commissioners (the Board), consisting of 17 members. The
members shall be composed of the following members who shall be subject to Senate confirmation,
provided that no clected official shall be appointed to serve as a member:

o One member appointed by the Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection Authority East (SLFPAE).

e One member appointed by the siate senator representing Senate District No. 3 and Senate District No.
4, and by the state representative representing [ouse District No. 97, Touse District No. 94, House
District No. 99, and by the Congressional Representative representing Congressional District No. 1
and Congressional District No. 2. At least one member appointed shall be a lawyver, at least one
member shall be a certified public accountant and at least one member shall be a realtor.

o One member appointed by the mayor of the city of New Orleans.

e One member appointed by each New Orleans city council member in whose district a non-flood asset
is located.

e Two members appointed jointly by the presidents of the akeshore, Lake Vista, Lake Terrace, and
Lake Oaks property owners associations.

e One member appoinicd by the secretarv of the Department of Transportation and Development.

e One member appointed by the Lake Pontchartrain Basin Foundation.

e One member appointed by the board for the New Orleans City Park.

Regular monthlv meetings of the Board are convened at a place determined by the Board.

The Financial Statements of the Authority include the governmental fund and the general improvement
fund, as well as the aggregate resulis of the enterprise fund asscts of OLD which it manages.

The Authority has responsibility not only for the proprietary funds of OLIDD, but also roadways and
public recreation areas along Lake Pontcharirain and all government-type activities related to them. 'The
OLD Real Estate Fund is reported with the governmental funds. The General Improvement Fund is also
managed by the Authority.

Measurement Focus, Basis Of Accounting, And Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activitics) report information about the Authority as a whole. For the most part, the effect of interfund
activity has been removed from these statements. Governmenial aciivities, which normally are
supporied by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reporied separately from business-type
activities, which rely primarily on fees and charges for support.
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, And Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of the given functions
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, seivices, or privileges provided by a given function (allocated to functions
based on actual revenues and expenditures) and (2) grants and confribuiions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other revenues not
properly included among program revenucs are reported instead as gencral revenucs.

Basis of Accounting

In April 1984, the Financial Accounting Foundation established the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) to promulgate generally accepted accounting principles and reporting
standards with respect to activitics and transactions of statc and local governmental entitics. The
accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with such principles. The
accompanying financial statements present information only as fo the transaciions of the Authority as
authorized by Louisiana statutes. Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are
recognized and reported in the financial statemenis. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the
measurements mode, regardless of the measurement focus applicd.

The accounts of the Authorily are maintained in accordance with applicable statutory provisions and the
regulations of the State of T.ouisiana, Division of Administration, Office of Statewide Reporting and
Accounting Policy.

Fund Financial Staterments

Separale financial stalements are provided for governmental funds. Major individual governmenial
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when susceptible to
accrual (i.e. both measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of the iransaction can be
determined; and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be
used to pay liabilitics of the current period. The Authority considers most revenucs available if they are
collected within 60 days after vear end. For certain grants for which collectability is assured, but do not
meet the availability criteria, the revenue is recorded as unearned revenue. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a lability is incurred under the accrual basis of accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are
recorded when paid.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Authority's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as thev arc needed.
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, And Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Fund Balance

In 2012, the Authority adopted the provisions of GASB Codificalion 1300 Fund Accounting and 1800
Classification and Terminology, which changed the reporting of fund balance in the balance sheets of
governmenial fund tvpes. In fund financial statements, fund balance for governmental funds is reported
in classifications that comprise a hierarchy primarily on the extent to which the Authority is bound to
honor constraints on the specific purposc for which amounts in the funds can be spent. Fund balance is
reported in five components — nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.

e Nonspendable — This component consists of amounts that cannol be spent because they are either (a)
not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

® Restricted — This component consists of amounts that have constraints placed on them either
externally by third-partics (creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments) or by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Enabling legislation
authorizes the Authority to assess, levy, change or otherwise mandate payment of resowrces (from
external resource providers) and includes a legally enforceable requirement (compelled by external
parties) that those resources be used only for the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation.

e Commitied — This component consists of amounts that can only be used for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Authority. Those committed amounts cannot
be used for any other purpose unless the Authority removes or changes the specified use by taking the
same type of action {ordinance or resolution) it employed previously to commit those amounts.

o Assigned — This component consists of amounts that are constrained by the Authority’s intent to be
used for specific purposes, bul are neither restricted nor committed. The authorization for assigning
fund balance is expressed by the Authority or the designee as cstablished in the Authority’s Fund
Balance Policy.

e Unassigned — This component consists of amounts that have not been restricted, committed or
assigned 1o specific purposes within the general fund. When both restricted and unrestricted resources
are available for use, it is the Authority’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted
resources in the following order: committed resources first, then assigned, and then unassigned as
thev are nceded.

Net Position

In 2013, the Authority adopted GASB Standards which provided financial reporting guidance for
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and net position. State and local
governments enter into transactions that result in the consumption or acquisition of assets in one period
that arc applicable to future periods. GASB Statement No. 63 requires that deferred outflows of
resources should be reported in a statement of net position in a separate section following assets and
deferred inflows of resources should be reported in a separate seciion following liabilities. During 2013,
the Authority adopted the statement and restated balances previously referred to as net assets to net
position.
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, And IMinancial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Net Position (Continued)

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred
inflows. Net position should be displayed in three components — net investment in capital assets
consisting of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any
debt proceeds used for the acquisition, construction, or improvements of those assets; restricted
distinguishing between major categories of restrictions and consisting of restricted assets reduced by
liabilitics and deferred inflows of resources related to those asscts; and unrestricted congisting of the net
amount of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are
not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net
position.

Major Funds

The OLD’s Real Estate I'und is used to provide management and administration of non-flood control
operations, including OLD's proprietary funds as well as parks, roadways, and bridges. The Authority’s
General Improvement Fund is used to account for financial resources received and used for the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of non-flood protection related capital facilities. This fund is
controlled and managed by the Authority.

The South Shore Harbor Marina, Orleans Marina, T.akefront Airport, I.ake Vista Community Center,
and New Basin Canal are proprietary funds used for financial resources received and used for the
operation maintenance, and improvement of capital facilities. These funds are conirolied and managed
by the Authority.

Use of IXstimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimaies and assumptions that aflect the reported amounis of asseis and
tiabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounis of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the siatement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include all demand accounts
and certificates of deposit with an original maturity of three months or less.

Under state law, the Authority may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest bearing demand deposits,
money market accounts or time deposits with statc banks organized under Louisiana law and national
banks having principal offices in Louisiana. State statutes authorize the Authority to invest in United
States bonds, treasury notes or certificates. These are classified as investments if the original maturities
exceed 90 days. Investments are stated at tair value using published market rates.

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates market value. Under state law, these
deposits (or the resulting bank balances) musi be secured by [ederal deposit insurance or the pledge of
securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal
deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These pledged
securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank in the
form of commercial paper held by the state treasurer. The Authority was fully covered by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) and pledged securities al June 30, 2020.
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Tnvestments - DAMP

The Louisiana Assel Management Pool (“*LAMP”) is administered by LAMP, Inc., a non-profit
Corporation, organized under the laws of the State of T.ouisiana. Only local government entities having
contracted to participate in LAMYP have an invesiment interest in its pool of assets.

The primary objective of LAMP is to provide a safe environment for the placement of public funds in
shori-term, high quality investments. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other obligations
in which local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in accordance with LA-R.S. 33:2955.
LAMP is rated AAA by Standard & Poor’s.

The dollar weighted average portfolio maturity of LAMP assets is restricted to not more than 90 days.
LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants immediate access to the account balances.
The investments in LAMP are stated at fair value based on quoted market rates. The fair value is
determined on a weekly basis by LAMP and the value of the position in the external investment pool is
the same as the value of the pool shares. LAMP, Inc. is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state
treasurer and the board of directors. LAMP is not registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) as an investment company. If you have any questions, pleasc feel free to contact the
LAMP administrative office at (800) 249-5267.

Investments in LAMP arc stated at amortized cost due to their liquidity.
Receivables
All receivables are shown net of allowance for doubtful accounts.

Interfund Receivables or Pavables

‘The amounts are referred to as either due to or due from other funds, which result from a pooled cash
management process. Interfund receivables or pavables reflect a cumulative excess of costs (due from)
or revenue {due to) generally between the general funds and all other funds. As a general rule, all
interfund balances are eliminated in the government-wide [inancial statemenis.

Inventory
Supplies and fuel are expensed when purchased.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure, such as bridges, seawalls,
roads, and levees, are reported in the financial statemenis. In accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and the GASB Codification 2200, governments are
required to identify infrastructure assets, including flood control svstems. The Authority has recorded
the costs of construction for projects identificd in its bond documents and will continuc to recognize its
portion of the cost of infrastructure. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical
cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated market value at the
date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Major ouilays for capital assels and improvemenis
are capitalized as projects are constructed. The Authority has implemented a $5,000 minimum
capitalization threshold. The Authority’s capitalization threshold for infrastructure asseis is $2,000,000
to be consistent with the recommendation by the Office of Statewide Reporting and Accounting Policy.
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Canpital Assets (Continued)

The following are the major classes of capital assets and the related asset lives:

Buildings 20-40 years
Improvements other than buildings 3-40 years
HEquipment 5-40 vears
Infrastructure 25-50 vears

Deferred Qutflows and Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate seciion for
deterred outflows of resources. This separate tinancial statement element, Deferred Outflows of
Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be
recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The Authority has two items thal meet this criterion
— pension and OPEB-related deferrals. In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement
clement, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period and so will not be recognized as revenue unitil then, The Authority has two items that meet the
criteria for this category — OPEB and pension-related deferrals.

Compensated Absences

Employces carn and accumulate annual and sick lcave of various rates, depending on the years of
service. The amount of annual and sick leave that may be accumulated by each employee is unlimited.
LUipon termination, employees or the employee’s estate are compensated for up to 300 hours of unused
annual leave at the employee's hourly rate of pay at the time of termination. Upon retirement, unused
annual leave in excess of 300 hours plus unused sick leave are used to compule retirement benefits. In
addition, it is the Authority's policy to pay any accwmnulated compensatorv lcave at the cmployec's
hourly rate of pay at the time of termination.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
the Louisiana State Employees’ Retirement System and additions fo/deductions from this retirement
system’s fiduciary net positions have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the
retirement system. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair
value.

Other Post-Emplovment Benefits

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Office of Group Benefits (OGRB) plan and additions to deductions from the plan’s fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis a s they are reported by the OGB. For this purposc, benefit
pavments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported ai fair value,
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term obligations are recognized as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities statement of net position.

Date of Management’s Review

Subsequent evenis have been evaluated through November 3, 2020, the date the financial statemenis were
available to be issued.

Balance Sheet

Governmental funds include a reconciliation of the government-wide statements to the governmental
fund financial statements. This reconciliation is necessary to bring the financial statements from the
current financial resources measurement focus and modificd accrual basis of accounting to the
economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of accounting. Major items included in
the reconciliation are capital assets, accrued compensated absences, net pension liability, and post-
emplovment benefits payable, which are shown on the government-wide but not the governmental fund
statements. The statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances — governmental
funds include reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and
change in net position of governmental activities. Governmental funds report capital outlays as
expenditures; however, in the statement of activities and changes in net position, the cost of those asseis
is allocated over the estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. Other differences in
recognition include number of months allowed in estimating revenue collections, contributions to the
pension plan in the current fiscal year, clagsification of changes in long-term obligations, pension
expense, and post-employment benefit and pension expense.

Lxpenditures are controlled at a major cost category level. The Executive Director may reallocate
resources among cosl categories and departmenis so long as aggregale cost does not change. Changes (o
the budgets that will change total revenue or expense must be approved by the Board.

Budgetary Accounting

By April 1 of each year, the Board submits the annual budgets to the Joint Legislative Commitice on
the Budget and to the T.egislative Auditor of the State of T.ouisiana for the succeeding fiscal year. The
operating and capital budgets include proposed expenditures and the means of financing.

All original budgets were adopted on March 28, 2019. The budgeted amounts arc included in the
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Budgel and Actual - Governmental
Funds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Budgetary Accounting (Continued)

The most significant changes made are described below:
Revenues

Authority’s original budget for governmental funds called for a total of $2,173,000 in revenucs, with
the budget not being amended for revenues. The Authority had an unfavorable revenue variance of
$110.462.

Expenditures
The Authority’s budgei for governmenial funds called for total expenditures of $2,586,489. The budget
to actual variance was favorable by $927,020. Combined variances in the final budget amounts and

aclual results are shown in the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual — Governmental Funds.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash

Cash includes petty cash and demand deposiis. Cash equivalents may include amounts in time deposits,
money market mutual funds, commercial paper, and United States Treasury bills,

Cash I.AMP Total
Balance per Authority books $ 648,777 § 8441438 § 9090215
Deposits n bank and mvestinent
accounts per banks $ 826543 § 8441438 % 9,267981

The total bank balances will not necessarily equal the deposits in bank account per the statement of net
position. Deposits in bank accounts are stated at cost, which approximates market value. Under state
law, these deposits are secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the
fiscal agent bank. All balances are covered by sufficient collateral and FDIC coverage.

Investments
At June 30, 2020, the Authority had an investment of 88,441,438 with the Louisiana Asset Management

Pool {(ILAMP), which is included in investments. LAMP is stated at amortized cost, and is therefore not
included in the fair value hicrarchy.
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3) CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of changes in governmental fund type fixed assets for the year ended June 30, 2020 is as
follows:

6/30/2019 Additions Reductions 6/30,2020

Governme ntal Activities:

Capital assets being depreciated:

Equipment S 212,540 $ - S - $ 212.540
Total capital assets being depreciated 212,540 - - 212,540

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Equipment 112,666 15,585 - 128.251
Total acoumulated depreciation 112,666 15,585 - 128251
Total capital assets being depreciated. net 99,874 (15,585) - 84.289
Governmental activities capital assets, net 8 99874 8 (15,585) § - $ 84,289

A summary of changes in proprietarv fixed assets for the year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows:

6/30/2019 Additions Reductions 6/30/2020

Capital assets being de preciated:

Equipment $ 1444911 % - $ - $ 1444911
Total capital asscts being depreciated 1,444 911 - - 1.444.911

Less accumulated de pre ciation for:

Equipment 1,342,203 23,692 - 1,365,895
Total accumulated depreciation 1,342,203 23,692 - 1,365,895
Total capital asscts being depreciated, not 102.708 (23.692) - 79,016

Business-type activities capital assets, net S 102,708 $§  (23.692) $ - $ 79,016
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CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows:

Governmental activities:
Property Management $ 15.586

Total depreciation expense, governmental activities 3 15,586

Business-tvpe activitics:

South Shore Harbor Marine b 2,127
I.akefront Airport 17,021
Orleans Marina 4.544

Total depreciation expense, business-type activities 3 23.692

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The cost of leave privileges, computed in accordance with GASB Codification Scction C60
Compensaled 4bsences, is recognized as an expense when leave is earned. The statement of net
position present the cost of accumulated annual and compensatory leave as a liability. There is no
liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the Authority does not have a policy to pay this
amount when employees separate from service. The combined value of accrued annual leave and
compensatory leave at June 30, 2020 was $308.,618.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description

Employecs of the Authority are provided with pensions through a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit plan administered by the Louisiana State Lmployees’ Retirement System (LASERS).
Section 401 of Title 11 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes (LA RS 11:401) grants to LASERS Board of
Trustees and the Louisiana egislature the authority to review administration, benefit terms,
invesiments, and funding of the plan. LASERS issues a publicly available financial report that can be
obtained at www .lasersonline.org.

Benefits Provided

The following is a description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information
purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutcs for more complete information.

Retirement

The age and years of creditable service required in order for a member to retire with full benefits are
established by statute, and vary depending on the member's hire date, employer, and job classification.
The majority of LASERS rank and file members may either retire with full benetits at any age upon
completing 30 yvears of creditable service or at age 60 upon completing five to ten yvears of creditable
service depending on their plan. Additionally, members may choose to retire with 20 years of service at
any age, with an actuariallv reduced benefit. The basic annual retivement benefit for members is cqual
to 2.5% to 3.5% of average compensation multiplied by the number of vears of creditable service.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Retirement (Continued)

Average compensation is defined as the member's average annual earned compensation for the highest
36 consecuiive months of employment for members employed prior to July 1, 2006, For members
hired July 1, 2006 or later, average compensation is based on the member’s average annual earned
compensation for the highest 60 consceutive months of employment. The maximum annual retirement
benelit cannot exceed the lesser of 100% of average compensation or a cerlain specified dollar amount
of actuarially determined monetary limits, which vary depending upon the member's age at retirement.
Judges, court officers, and certain elecied officials receive an additional annual retirement benefit equal
to 1.0% of average compensation multiplied by the number of vears of creditable service in their
respective capacitv. As an altcrnative to the basic retirement benefits, a member may clect to receive
their retirtement benefits throughout their life, with certain benefits being paid to their designated
beneficiary afier their death.

Act 992 of the 2010 Louisiana Regular Legislative Session, changed the benefit structure for LASERS
members hired on or after Januvary 1, 2011, This resulted in three now plans: regular, hazardous duty,
and judges. The new regular plan includes regular members and those members who were formerly
cligible to participate in specialty plans, excluding hazardous duty and judges. Regular members and
judges are eligible to retire at age 60 after five years of creditable service and, may also retire at any
age, with a reduced benefit, afler 20 years of creditable service. Hazardous duly members are eligible
to retire with twelve vears of creditable service at age 55, 25 vears of creditable service at any age or
with a reduced benefit after 20 years of creditable service.

Under act 992, average compensation will be based on the member’s average annual camed
compensation for the highest 60 consecuiive months of employment for all three new plans. Members
in the regular plan will receive a 2.5% accrual rate, hazardous duty plan a 3.33% acciual rate, and
judges a 3.5% accrual rate. ‘The exira 1.0% accrual rate for each vear of service for court officers, the
governor, lieutenant governor, legislators, House clerk, sergeants at arms, or Senate secretary,
cmployed after January 1, 2011, was climinated by Act 992. Specialtv plan and regular members, hired
prior to January 1, 2011, who are hazardous duly employees have the option Lo (ransition to the new
hazardous duty plan.

Act 226 of the 2014 Louisiana Regular Legislative Session established new retirement eligibility for
members of LASERS hired on or after July 1, 20135, excluding hazardous duty plan members. Regular
members and judges under the new plan are eligible to retire at age 62 after five vears of creditable
service and may also retire at anv age, with a reduced benefii, afier 20 years of creditable service.
Average compensation will be based on the member’s average annual earned compensation for the
highest 60 consecutive months of employment. Members in the regular plan will receive a 2.5% accrual
rate,

A member leaving employment before attaining minimum retirement age, but after completing certain
minimum service requirements, becomes eligible for a benefit provided the member lives to the
minimum service retirement age, and does not withdraw their accumulated coniributions. The
minimum service requirement for benefits varies depending upon the member's emplover and service
classification but generally is ten years of service.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Deferred Retirement Benefits

The State Legislature authorized LASERS to establish a Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP).
When a member enters DROP, their status changes from active member to retiree even though they
continue to work and draw their salary for a period of up to three years. The election is irrevocable once
participation begins. During DROP participation, accumulated retirement benefits that would have
been paid to each retiree are separately tracked. For members who entered DROP prior to January 1,
2004, interest at a rate of one-half percent less than the System's realized return on its portfolio (not to
be less than zero) will be credited to the retiree after participation ends. At that time, the member must
choose among available alternatives for the distribution of benefits that have accumulated in the DROP
account. Members who enter DROP on or after January 1, 2004, are required to participate in LASERS
Self-Directed Plan (SDP) which is administered by a third-party provider. The SDP allows DROP
participants to choose from a menu of investment options for the allocation of their DROP balances.
Participants may diversity their investments by choosing from an approved list of mutual funds with
different holdings, management styles, and risk factors.

Members eligible to retire and who do not choose to participate in DROP may elect to receive at the
time of retirement an initial benefit option (IBO) in an amount up to 36 months of benefits, with an
actuarial reduction of their future benefits. For members who selected the IBO option prior to January
1, 2004, such amount may be withdrawn or remain in the IBO account earning interest at a rate of one-
half percent less than the System’s realized return on its portfolio (not to be less than zero). Those
members who select the IBO on or after January 1, 2004, are required to enter the SDP as described
above,

Disabilitv Benefits

Generally, active members with ten or more years of credited service who become disabled may receive
a maximum disability retirement benefit equivalent to the regular retirement formula without reduction
by reason of age.

Upon reaching retirement age, the disability retiree may receive a regular retirement benefit by making
application to the Board of Trustees.

For injuries sustained in the line of duty, hazardous duty personnel in the Hazardous Duty Services Plan
will receive a disability benetit equal to 75% of final average compensation or 100% of the final
average compensation if the injury was the result of an intentional act of violence.

Survivor’s Benefits

Certain eligible surviving dependents receive benefits based on the deceased member's compensation
and their relationship to the deceased. The deceased member who was in state service at the time of
death must have a minimum of five years of service credit, at least two of which were earned
immediately prior to death, or who had a minimum of twenty years of service credit regardless of when
earned in order for a benefit to be paid to a minor or handicapped child. Benefits are payable to an
unmarried child until age 18, or age 23 if the child remains a full-time student. The aforementioned
minimum service credit requirement is ten years for a surviving spouse with no minor children, and
benetits are to be paid for life to the spouse or qualified handicapped child.

The deceased regular member hired on or after January 1, 2011, must have a minimum of five years of
service credit regardless of when earned in order for a benefit to be paid to a minor child. The
aforementioned minimum service credit requirements for a surviving spouse are 10 years, 2 years being
earned immediately prior to death, and active state service at the time of death, or a minimum of 20
years of service credit regardless of when earned. A deceased member’s spouse must have been
married for at least one year before death.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

A TTazardous Duty Services Plan member’s surviving spouse and minor or handicapped or mentally

incapacitated child or children are entitted o survivor benelits of 80% of the member’s final average
compensation if the member was killed in the line of duty. If the member dies in the line of duty as a
result of an intentional act of violence, survivor benefits may be increased to 100% of the member’s

final average compensation.

Permanent Benefit Increases/Cost-of-Living Adjustments

As fully described in Title 11 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes, LASERS allows for the payment of
permanent bencefit increases, also known as cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs), that arc funded
through investment eamings when recommended by the Board of Trustees and approved by the State
Iegislature.

Contributions

Contribution requiremenis of active employees are governed by Tiile 11 of the Louisiana Revised
Statutes and mayv be amended by the Louisiana Legislature. Employee contributions are deducted from
a member’s salary and remitted to LASERS by participating emplovers along with emplover portion of
the contribution.

The employer contribution rates in effect during the vear ended June 30, 2020 for the various plans
follow:

Appellate T.aw Clerks 40.70%
Appellaie Law Clerks hired on or after 7/01/06 40.70%
Alcohol Tobacco Control 33.90%
Bridge Police 39.80%
Bridge Police hired on or afier 7/01/06 39.80%
Corrections Primary 36.90%
Corrections Secondary 40.70%
Harbor Police 7.70%

Hazardous Duty 41.70%
Judges hired before 1/01/11 42.40%
Judges hired after 123110 42.00%
Judges hired on or after 7/01/15 42.00%
Legislators 40.40%
Optional Retirement Plan (ORP) before 7/01/06 36.01%
Optional Retirement Plan (ORP) on or after 7/01/06 36.01%
Peace Officers 39.40%
Regular Employees hirved betore 7/01/06 40.70%
Regular Employees hired on or afler 7/01/06 40.70%
Regular Emplovees hired on or after 1/01/11 40.70%
Regular Employees hired on or after 7/01/15 40.70%
Special Legislative Employees 42.40%
Wildlife Agents 49.70%

The Authority’s contractually required composite contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2020
was 40.70% of annual pavroll, actuarially determined as an amount thai, when combined with
employee contributions, is expecied to finance the costs of benefits carned by emplovees during the
year, with an additional amount to finance any Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liabilitv. Contributions to
the pension plan [rom the Authority were $570,019 for the vear ended June 30, 2020.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Refunds of Contributions

If a member leaves covered employment or dies before any benefits become payabie on their behalf, the
accumulated contributions may be refunded to the member or their designated beneficiary. Similarly,
accumulated contributions in excess of any benefits paid to members or their survivors are refunded to
the member’s beneficiaries or their estates upon cessation of any survivor’s benefits.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2020, the Authority reported a liability of $4,544,377 for its proportionate share of the net
penston liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019 and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that
date. The Authority’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
Authority’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions
of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the Authority’s proportion was
0.062725%, which was a decrease of .006025% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Authority recognized pension expense of $608,274 plus the
Authority’s amortization of change in proportionate share and difference between employer
contributions and proportionate share of contributions of $174,567.

At June 30, 2020, the Authority reported deferred outtlows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected
and actual experience $ 27,904 $ 9,443
Change in assumptions 38,941 -
Net difference between projected and
actual earnmgs on pension plan inve stments 157,002 -
Changes i proportion and differences
between employer contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 189,200 12,178
Employer contributions subsequent to
the measurement date 570,019 -

Total $ 983,066 $ 21,621
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&) RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Deferved outflows of resources of $570,019 related to pensions resulting from the Authority’s
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduciion of net pension
hability in the vear ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows for
the year ending June 30,:

Year ending June 30:

2021 S 339047
2022 (49.664)
2023 43,194
2024 58,849
Total S 391426

Actunarial Assumptions

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension lability as
of June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Valuation Date June 30, 2019
Actuarial Cost Method Entrv Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions:
Expecied Remaining Service Lives 2 vears.
Investment Rate of Return 7.60% per annum.
Inflation Raie 2.50% per annum,
Mortality Non-disabled members - Mortality rates based on the

RPP-2014 Healthy Mortalitv Table with mortality improvement
projected using the MP-2018 Mortality Improvement Scale.

Disabled members — Mortality rates based on the
RP-2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table, with no
projection for mortality improvement

Termination, Disability, and Retirement Termination, disability, and retircment assumptions
were projected based on a five-vear (2014-2018)
experience study of the Svstem's members.

Salary Increases Salary increases were projected based on a 2014-2018
experience study of the Svstem's members. The salary
increase ranges for specific types of members are:

Lower Upper
Member Type Range Range
Regular 3.2% 13.0%
Judges 2.8% 5.3%
Corrections 3.8% 14.0%
Hazardous Duty 3.8% 14.0%
Wildlife 3.8% 14.0%
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continsed)

Cost of Living Adjustments The present value of future retirement benetits is based on
benefits currently being paid by the System and includes
previously granied cost of living increases. The projected
benefit pavments do not include provisions for potential future
increases not yet authorized by the Board of Trustecs as they
were deemed not to be substantively automatic.

The Tong-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building -
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding cxpected inflation and an
adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. The target allocation and best estimates of
geometric real raies of return for cach major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset
allocation as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class ‘Target Allocation  Real Rate of Return
Cash %% 0.24%
Domestic equity 23% 4.83%
International equity 32% 5.83%
Domestic fixed mcome 6% 2.79%
International (ixed meome 10% 4.49%
Alternative investments 22% 8.32%

Risk Parity % 5.06%
Total 100% 3.40%

Discount Rate

‘The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.60%. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current
confribution ratc and that cmployer contributions from participating cmployers will be madc at
contractually required rales, acluarially determined. Based on those assumplions, the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of
current active and inactive plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

35



6))

(6)

LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of the Authority’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability using the
discount rate of 7.60%, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower (6.60%) or one
percentage-point higher (8.60%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
6.60% 7.60% 8.60%
Authority’s proportionate share
of the net pension ]]ablhty $ 5,735,582 $ 4,544 377 $ 3,538,206

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
LASERS 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report at www.lasersonline.org.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Office of Group Benetits (OGB) administers the State of Louisiana Post Retirement Benefit Plan -
a single- employer defined benefit other post-employment benefit plan. The plan provides medical,
prescription drug and life insurance benefits to retirees, disabled retirees, and their eligible beneficiaries
through premium subsidies. Current employees, who participate in an OGB health plan while active,
are eligible for plan benefits if they retire under one of the state sponsored retirement systems
(LASERS, LSPRS, TRSL, or LSERS). Benefit provisions are established under LRS 42:821 for life
insurance benefits and LRS 42:851 for health insurance benefits. The obligations of the plan members,
employer(s), and other contributing entities to contribute to the plans are established or may be
amended under the authority of Louisiana RS 42:802.

A summary of all members participating in the plan at June 30, 2020 is as follows:

OGB offered to retirees under age 65 three self-insured healthcare plans and one fully insured plan.
Retired employees who have Medicare Part A and Part B coverage had access to these plans and an
additional two fully insured Medicare- Advantage HMO plans, one fully insured plan, and one Zero-
Premium HMO plan.

Employer contributions are based on plan premiums and the employer contribution percentage. This
percentage is based on the date of participation in an OGB plan (before or after January 1, 2002) and
employee years of service at retirement. Employees who begin participation or rejoin the plan before
January 1, 2002 pay approximately 25% of the cost of coverage (except single retirees under age 65
who pay approximately 25% of the active employee cost). For those beginning participation or
rejoining on or after January 1, 2002, the percentage of premiums contributed by the employer is based
on the following schedule:
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(6) OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Emplover Contribution Retiree Contribution
OGB Participaiion Percentage Percentage
Under 10 vears 19% 81%
10-14 years 38% 62%
15-19 years 56% 44%
20+ vears 75% 25%

In addition to healthcare benefits, retirees may elect to receive life insurance benefits. Basic and
supplemental life insurance is available for the individual retirce and spouscs of retirces subject to
maximum values. Employers pay approximately 50% of monthly premiums. The retiree is responsible
for 100% of the premium for dependenis. Effective January 1, 2018, the total monthly premium for
retirees varies according to age group.

The plan docs not issuc a stand-alone financial report.

Funding Policv

There are no assels accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria of paragraph 4 of GASR Statement No.
75. The plan is funded on a "pav-as-you-go basis" under which the contributions to the plan arc
generally made at about the same time and in about the same amount as benefit payments become due.

Effective, July 1, 2008, an OPEB trust fund was statutorily established; however, no plan assets had
been accumulated as of June 30, 2020.

Total OPEDB Liabilitv

At June 30, 2020, the Authority reported a liability of $1,012.487 for its proportionate share of the total
collective OPLD liability. The net OPLD lability was measwred as of July 01, 2019 and the total OPER
Hability used o calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that
date. The Authority’s proportionate share of the total collective OPEB liability at June 30, 2019 was
based on a projeciion of the Authority’s total OPEB liability relative o the projecied total OPEB
hability of all participating employvers, actuarially determined. At July 01, 2019, the Authority’s
proportion was .202914%, an incrcasc of .006781% from its proportion at July 01, 2018.
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For the vear ended June 30, 2020 the Authority recognized OPEB expense of $37,450. At June 30, 2020,
the employer reporied deferred ouiflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB

from the following sources:

Deterred
Outflows of
Resources
Differences between expected
and actual experence $ 12.243
Change n assumptions .
Changes in proportion and differences
between employer contributions and
proportionate sharc of contributions 196,519
Emplover contributions subsequent to
the measurement date 117.425
Total 3 326,187

The $117,425 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from Employer
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB

liability in the vear ended June 30, 2021.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to

OPEBs will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2020 $ (84.350)
2021 (73.252)
2022 (91.050)
2023 (47306)

Total §  (295.958)
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OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs

The total OPEB liability in the July 01, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified:

Inflation 2.80%
Salary incrcascs Congistent with the pension valuation assumplions.
Discount rate 2.98% based on the S&P Municipal Bond 20-Year

Iligh Grade Rate Index
Healthcare cost trend rates T% - 4.59%

The actuarial assumptions used by the pension plans covering the same participants were used for the
retirement, termination, disability, and salary scale assumptions.

Sensitivity of the total OPEB Liabilily to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the primary government of the OGB Plan, as well as
what the total OPED liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage
point lower (1.98%) or one percentage point higher (3.98%) than the current discount rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 196 Increase
1.98% 2.98% 3.98%

Authority’s proportionate share
ofthe collective total OPEB liability $ 1231243 § 1012487 § 842.647

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healihcare cost trend rates

The following presents the total OPEB hiability of the primary government of the OGB Plan, as well as
what the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using health care cost frend rates that are
one percentage point lower or ong percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Current
1% Decrease Trend Rate % Increase

Authonity’s proportionate share
ol the collective total OPEB lability $ 851,759 § 1.012.487 $ 1.224.329

B o e o)
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Operating Leases

The Authority manages and leases boat slips, boathouses, and building space to certain parties under
operating leases. At June 30, 2020, the total cost of the land, buildings and improvements leased (o
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others is $183 million. At June 30, 2020 these assets had $95 million of related accumulated
depreciation. Current year rents amount to $5.5 million. The amount derived from contingent rent
increases was not significant. The amounts reported represent rents due on non-cancelable leases
currently in effect. Future mimimum rental payments to be received under these operating leases are as
follows for the vears ending June 30:

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026-2030
2021-2035
2036-2040

Remainder of term

Total

(8 LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Changes in Long-Term Oblisations

$ 4,283,423
1,848,106
1,562,591

818,936
1,081,798
3,508,430
3,236,650
1,070,395

214.079

s 17624408

The following schedules summarize the changes in long-term debt during the year ended June 30, 2020:

Governmental Activilies:
Compensated absences
Net pension hiability

Net OPEB habilty

Total governmental actvities

Busmess-Type Activities:
Compensated absences
Net pension liabilty

Net OPEB Lhability

Total busmess-lvpe activities

Total governmental and
business-type activities

Balance Balance Due Wihin
6/30/2019 Additions Reductions 6/30/2020 One Year
5 150,756 $ 86,737 - % 237493 § 37,595
415,556 - (37,395) 378,161 -
131,508 : (50,509) 80,999 :
697,820 86,737 (87,904) 696,633 37,595
74.430 - (3.305) 71,125 12.070
4273,166 - (106,950) 4166216 -
1,329,695 : (398,207) 931,488 :
5677291 - (508.462) 5,168,829 12.070
5 6375111 % 86,737 (596,366) § 5865482 & 49665

40



®

(10)

LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Litigation

A variety of claims have been made against the Authority and its districts in a number of pending
lawsuits. Management has regular litigation reviews, including updates from outside counsel, to assess
the need for accounting recognition or disclosure of these contingencies. The Authority accrues an
undiscounted liability for those contingencies when the incurrence of a loss is probable and the amount
can be reasonably estimated. If a range of amounts can be reasonably estimated and no amount within
the range is a better estimate than any other amount, then the minimum of the range is accrued. The
Authority does not record liabilities when the likelihood that the liability has been incurred is probable,
but the amount cannot be reasonably estimated or when the liability is believed to be only reasonably
possible or remote. For contingencies where an unfavorable outcome is reasonably possible and which
are significant, the Authority discloses the nature of the contingency and, where feasible, an estimate of
the possible loss. For purposes of our contingency disclosures, “significant” includes material matters
as well as other matters which management believes should be disclosed. The Authority and its districts
will continue to defend itself vigorously in these matters. Based on a consideration of all relevant facts
and circumstances, the Authority does not believe the ultimate outcome of any currently pending
lawsuit against the Authority will have a material, or adverse effect upon the Authority’s operations,
financial condition, or financial statements taken as a whole.

It is the opinion of the Authority, after conferring with legal counsel for the Authority, that several of
the potential claims against the Authority, while not classified as “probably,” do not have the

reasonable possibility of an unfavorable outcome, so no liability has been booked.

Federally Assisted Grant Programs

The Authority participates in a number of federally-assisted grant programs. The programs are subject
to compliance audits under the Office of Management and Budget Uniform Grant Guidance. Such
audits could lead to requests for reimbursement by the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed
under terms of the grants. The Authority believes that the amount of disallowances, if any, which may
arise from future audits, will not be material.

TAX ABATEMENT

The City of New Orleans (the City) negotiates property tax abatement agreements on behalf of the city
and its component units. Each agreement was negotiated for a variety of economic development
purposes, including business relocation, retention, and expansion. The OLD, through the City, has tax
abatement agreements with seventeen commercial entities participating in the Restoration Tax
Abatement (RTA) program as of June 30, 2020. The RTA projects have property assessed at
$11,457,691 with exempt taxes attributable to the OLD of approximately $750,000. The City has not
made any commitments as part of the agreements other than to reduce taxes.
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued Statement No. 83, “Certain Asset Retirement Obligations.” The objective of this
Statement is to provide financial statement users with information about asset retirement obligations
(AROs) that were not addressed in GASB standards by establishing uniform accounting and financial
reporting requirements for these obligations. This Statement establishes criteria for determining the
timing and the patlern of recognition of a liability and a corresponding deferred outflow of resources for
AROs, and requires (1) that recognition occur when the liability is both incurred and reasonably
estimable; (2) the measurement of an ARO fo be based on the best estimate of the current value of
outlays expected to be incurred; (3) the current value of a government’s AROs to be adjusted for the
cffects of general inflation or deflation at Ieast annually; (4) a govermment to cvaluate all relovant
factors at least annually to determine whether the effects of one or more of the factors are expected to
significantly change the estimaied asset retirement outlavs; and (5) disclosure of information
concerning the nature of a government’s AROs, the methods and assumptions used for the estimates of
the liabilities, and the estimated remaining useful life of the associated tangible capital assets. The
requircments of this Statement are effcective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2019, as
extended by GASB Statement No. 95, “Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative
Guidance”. The Statement did not have a significant impact on the Authority upon implemeniation.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 84, “Fiduciary Aciivities.” The objective of this Statement is (o
improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial
reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. This Statement establishes criteria for
identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The focus of the criteria generally is
on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries
with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separale criteria are included to identily fiduciarv component
units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019, as extended by GASB
Statement No. 93, “Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance”. The
Authority plans to adopt this Statement as applicable by the effective date.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 87, “T.eases.” The objective of this Statement is to better meet the
information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for
leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by
requiring recognition of certain lease asscts and liabilitics for Icascs that previously were classificd as
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract. It esiablishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlving asset. Under this Statement, a lessee
is required to recognize a lease lability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is
required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the
relevance and consistency of information about governments' leasing activities. The requirements of
this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning afier June 15, 2021, as extended by GASB
Statement No. 95, “Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance”. The
Authorily plans to adopt this Statement as applicable by the eflective date.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 89, “ Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a
Consiruction Period.” The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and
(2) to simplify accouniing for interesi cost incurred before the end of a construction period. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020,
as extended by GASB Statement No. 93, “Posiponement of the Effeciive Dates of Certain Authoritative
Guidance”. The Authority plans to adopi this Statement as applicable by the effective date.



an

LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The GASB has issued Statement No. 92, “Omnibus 20207, The objectives of this Statement are to
enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of
authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation
and application of certain GASB Statements. Certain requirements of this Statement arc cffcctive upon
issuance and certain requirements are effective for reporting periods beginning alter June 15, 2021, as
extended by GASB Statement No. 95, “Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative
Guidance”. The Authority plans to adopt this Statement as applicable by the effective date.

The GASB has issucd Statement No. 95, “Postponement of the Effcctive Dates of Certain Authoritative
Guidance”. The primary objective of this Statement is to provide temporary relief to governments and
other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. That objective is accomplished by postponing
the effective dates of certain provisions in Statements and Implementation Guides that first became
effective or are scheduled to become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018, and later. The
requircments of this Statement are cffective immediately. The Authority plans to apply this Statcment
to its adoption of the applicable pronouncements.

The GASD has issued Statement No. 96, “Subscription-based Information Technology Arrangements.”
This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based
information technology arrangements { SBITAs) for government end users {governments). This
Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription

asset aninfangible asset  and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization
criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and
(4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are
based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, I.eases, as amended. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, and all reporting periods
thereafter. The Authority plans to adopt this Statement as applicable by the effective date.
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

REVENUES:
Tax revenue
Operating grants
Interest income

Miscellaneous income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Personnel services

Travel and training
Professional services
Contractual services
Materials and supplies
Other charges

Machinery and equipment

Total expenditures

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

(under) expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Budgetary Amounts Actual on Variance with
Budgetary Final Budget
Original Final Basis Positive (Negative)
$ 1,985,000 $ 1,985,000 $ 1,853,018 $ (131,982)
- - 4,509 4,509
136,500 136,500 129,100 (7,400)
51,500 51,500 75,911 24,411
2,173,000 2,173,000 2,062,538 (110,462)
251,200 251,200 210,535 40,665
17,500 17,500 2,576 14,924
360,921 360,921 382,052 (21,131)
1,677,289 1,677,289 758,103 919,186
207,079 207,079 178,027 29,052
19,500 19,500 9,429 10,071
53,000 53,000 17,741 35,259
2,586,489 2,586,489 1,558,463 1,028,026
(413,489) (413,489) 504,075 917,564
(413,489) (413,489) 504,075
(617,338) (617,338) (617,338)
$§ (1,030,827) §  (1,030,827) § (113,263)

See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to combined financial statements.
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
SCHEUDLE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE COLLECTIVE NET PENSION LIABILITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020*

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
LOUISIANA STATE EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Authority's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 6.2725% 0.0688% 0.0598% 0.0587% 0.0580% 0.0577%
Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability $ 4,544,377 $ 4,688,722 4,211,394 4,607,924 $ 3,942,864 3,606,517
Authority's Covered Payroll $ 1,371,808 $ 1,181,204 1,092,345 1,024,891 $ 983,879 1,017,612
Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 331.27% 396.94% 385.54% 449.60% 400.75% 354.41%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
Total Pension Liability 62.9% 62.5% 62.5% 57.7% 62.7% 65.0%

Note: Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as

they become available.

*The amounts presented have a measurement date of June 30, 2019, 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively.

See Independent Auditors' Report
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
SCHEUDLE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - RETIREMENT PLAN

LOUISIANA STATE EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Contractually Required Contribution

Contributions in Relation to the
Contractually Required Contribution

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

Authority's Covered-Employee Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered-Employee Payroll

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

$ 570019 $ 519915 $ 447,993 $ 391,200 $ 381,924 $ 374236
(570,019) (519,915) (447,993) (391,200) (381,924) (374,236)

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

$ 1400537 $ 1371808 $ 1,181,204 $ 1,092,345 § 1,024,891 $ 983,879
40.70% 37.90% 37.93% 35.81% 37.26% 38.04%

Note: Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as

they become available.

See Independent Auditors' Report
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

SCHEUDLE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE COLLECTIVE NET OPEB LIABILITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020*

2020 2019 2018 2017
OFFICE OF GROUP BENEFITS
Authority's Proportion of the Net OPEB Liability 0.01310% 0.01710% 0.02180% 0.02180%
Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability $ 1,012,488 1,461,203 $ 1,894,619 1,977,939
Authority's Covered Payroll $ 1,371,808 1,181,204 $ 1,092,345 1,024,891
Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability
as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 73.81% 123.70% 173.45% 192.99%

Note: Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they

become available.

*The amounts presented have a measurement date of July 1, 2019, 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively.

See Independent Auditors' Report
47



1

)

LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2020

PENSION PLAN SCITEDULES

Change of Benefit Terms

There was a 1.5% cost of living increase effective July 1, 2016, provided by Acts 93 and 512 of
the 2016 Louisiana Regular Legislative Session.

Changes of Assumplions

During the vear ended June 30, 2019, the Louisiana State Employees” Retirement System
(LASERS) adjusted its assumption of the investment rate of return and the discount rate
from 7.65% to 7.60%. LASERS lowered its inflation rate assumption from 2.75% to
2.50%. Additionally, LASERS adjusted its expected remaining service lives from 3 vears
to 2 years. Mortality rates used changed from RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality
Table with mortality improvement projected to 2015 to RP-2014 Healthy Mortality Table
with mortality improvement projected using the MP-2018. The adjusted the ranges of s
salary increase assumptions from 3.4% 14.3%t03.2% 14.0%.

During the vear ended June 30, 2018, LASERS adjusted its assumption of the investment
rate of return and the discount rate from 7.70% to 7.65%.

During the year ended June 30, 2017, the LASERS adjusted its assumption of the
investment rate of return and the discount rate from 7.75% to 7.70%. LASERS lowered
its inflation rate assumption from 3.0% to 2.75%. Additionally, LASERS adjusted the
ranges of its salary increase assumptions from 3.6% - 14.5% to 3.4% -~ 14.3%.

There were no changes i assumptions during any other years presented.

OPEB SCHEDULE

There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the requirements in paragraph 4 of GASB
Statement 75 to payv related beneliis.

Change of Benefit Terms

There were no changes in benefit terms for the valuation dates presented.

Changes of Assumptions

For the July 1, 2019 valuaiion, the discount rate was adjusied to 2.79%. Additionally, per capila
costs and premiums were updaied, certain demographic assumptions were revised, high cost
¢xcise tax was removed, and life insurance conftributions were adjusted.
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

OPEB SCHEDULE (CONTINUED

For the July 1, 2018 valuation, the discount rate has decreased from 3.13% to 2.98%. Baseline per
capita costs were updated to reflect 2018 claims and enrollment and retiree contributions were
updated based on 2019 premiums. The impact of the High Cost Excise Tax was revisited,
reflecting updated plan premiums. Demographic assumptions were revised for the Louisiana State
Police Retirement System, the Louisiana School Emplovees’ Retirement Svstem, and the
Teachers” Retirement System of Louisiana to reflect recent experience studics. The mortality
assumpftion for the Louisiana State Employees’ Retirement Svstem was updated from the RP-
2014 Healthy Annuitani and Employee tables [or males and [emales with generational projeciions
using projection scale MP-2017 to the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant and Employee tables for
males and females using projection scale MIPP-2018. The percentage of future retirces assumed to
clect medical coverage was modified based on recent plan experience.
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORIT
SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS,
AND OTHER PAYMUNTS TO AGENCY HEAD

Salary

Benefits-health msurance
Benefits-retirement
Benefits-life msurance
Benefits-FICA and Medicare
Car allowance

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

See Independent Auditors’ Report
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Executive Director

Lous Capo

115,179
7,064
50086
574
1,801
9,000

183,704



SINGLE AUDIT SECTION



ﬂ‘ERICKSEN KRENTEL.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Commissioners
Lakefront Management Authority

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Lakefront Management Authority(the “Authority”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 3, 2020.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

4227 Canal Street Ericksen Krentel LLP 2895 Highway 190, Ste 213
New Orleans, LA 70119 www.EricksenKrentel.com Mandeville, LA 70471
P: (504) 486-7275 | F: (504) 482-2516 P: (985) 727-0777 | F:(985) 727-6701
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To the Board of Commissioners
Lakefront Management Authority
November 3, 2020

ERICKSEN KRENTEL.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the board of commissioners, the
Louisiana Legislative Auditor, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. Under Louisiana
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document.

November 3, 2020
New Orleans, Louisiana

Gocohser. Fecrlf 4f

Certified Public Accountants
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM
GUIDANCE

To the Board of Commissioners
Lakefront Management Authority

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Lakefront Management Authority’s (the “Authority”) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the Authority’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. The
Authority’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Authority’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority’s
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.

4227 Canal Street Ericksen Krentel LLP 2895 Highway 190, Ste 213
New Orleans, LA 70119 www.EricksenKrentel.com Mandeville, LA 70471
P: (504) 486-7275 | F: (504) 482-2516 P: (985) 727-0777 | F:(985) 727-6701
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ERICKSEN KRENTEL.

To the Board of Commissioners
Lakefront Management Authority
November 3, 2020

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Authority’s internal control over compliance with
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance 1s a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the board of commissioners, the
Louisiana Legislative Auditor, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties. Under Louisiana
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document.

November 3, 2020
New Orleans, Louisiana

Govohser. Recrlf ¢S

Certified Public Accountants
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Assistance Total
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through or Listing Grant Grant Federal
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Award Expenditures
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Pass - Through Louisiana Governor's Office of Homeland Security
and Emergency Preparedness
COVID-19 - Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared) 97.036 FEMA-1603-DR-4458 19,814 19,814
COVID-19 - Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared) 97.036 FEMA-1603-DR-4458 5,660
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 25,474
Federal Aviation Administration
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 03-22-0038-030-2017 389,480 16,587
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 03-22-0038-031-2018 292,472 175,345
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 03-22-0038-032-2019 6,560,406 5,705,545
COVID-19 - Airport Improvement Program 20.106 03-22-0038-033-2020 157,000 157,000
Total Federal Aviation Administration 6,054,477
$ 6,079,951

Total expenditures of federal awards

See Independent Auditors' Report
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTTIORITY
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SCOPE OF AUDIT PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS AND
TITLE 2 U'.S. CODE OF FEDERAL REGULUATIONS PART 200, UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE
REQUIREMENTS, COST PRINCIPLES, AND AUDIT REQUIREMENTS FOR FEDERAL
AWARDS (UNIFORM GUIDANCE)

All federal grant operations of the Lakefront Management Authority (“the Authority) are included in the
scope of the single audit. The program which was a major grant and was selected for specific testing was:

Airport Improvement Program (CFDA No. 20.106)
NOTE 2 - TISCAL PERIOD AUDIT

Single audit testing procedures were performed for program transactions occurring during the vear ended
June 30, 2020.

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards has been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting. Grant revenues arc recorded for financial reporting purposcs when the Authority has met the
qualifications for the respective grands.

Accrued and Deferred Reimbursement

Various reimbursement procedures are used for federal awards received by the Authority. Consequently,
timing differences between expenditures and program reimbursements can exist at the beginning and end
of the year. Accrued balances at year end represent an excess of reimbursable expenditures over cash

reimbursements and expenditures will be reversed in the remaining grant period.

Pass-Through Entitv Information

Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.
Payments to Subrecipients

There were no paymenis to subrecipients for the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2020.
NOTE 4 - INDIRECT COST RATE

The Authority has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

b

9.

The independent auditors’ report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements
of the Lakefront Management Authority.

No significant deficiencics or material weaknessces in internal control relating to the audit of the
financial statements are reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial

Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the T.akefront Management
Authority were reported in the Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses relating to the audit of the major federal
award programs are reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major
Program and on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance.

The independent audilors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the
I.akefront Management Authority expresses an unmodified opinion.

There were no audit findings required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section
200.516(a).

No management letter was issued for the year ended June 30, 2020.
The program tested as a major program was:
CFDA Number
Airport Improvement Program 20.106

The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $750,000.

10. Lakefront Management Authority was not determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

‘There were no findings relaied to the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020.

C. TINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATED TO MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD

PROGRAMS

‘There were no findings relaied to major federal award programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.



LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

SECTION I - FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Not Applicable

SECTION 1T - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATED TO MAJOR FEDERAL
AWARD PROGRAMS

Not Applicable
SECTION III - MANAGEMENT LETTER

Not Applicable
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LAKEFRONT MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT'S CORRLECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

There are no compliance and/or internal control findings as described in the Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs. Accordingly, no corrective action plan is required as a part of this scction.
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